





A910 Senior Instructions for use

Contents

Important instructions	4
Putting into operation	6
Insert SIM, memory card and battery	6
Battery charging	7
Charging stand	8
Basic control	9
Switch On / Offf	9
Mobile phone controls	.10
Icons on the screen	.14
Navigation in menu	.15
Keypad lock	.16
Text insert	.16
Making calls	.17
Dialing	.17
Contact list	.18
Dialing from contact list	.19
Working with contacts	.19
Speed dial	.20
SOS calls and SMS	.21
Launch of emergency call and SMS.	.21
SOS Locator - positioning	.23
Activating of SOS locator	.24
Remote location request	.24
Switch on/off emergency call / SMS.	.24
Setting SOS functions	.25
Call register	.26
Working with call register	.26

iviessages SiviS and iviiviS	∠0
Reading of messages	27
Create and send SMS	28
Working with messages	29
FM Radio	30
Torchlight	30
Alarm clock	31
Ringtone setttings – sound profiles	.32
Change of ringtone	34
Calendar	34
Calculator	35
Bluetooth	36
Camera	37
Camera setup	37
File manager	38
Mobile phone setup	
Calls	39
Telephone	
Display	40
Security	
Network setup + connection	
PC connection	42
File transfer between PC / phone	42
Other connection modes	
Specification	
Safety and ecology	
Used electrical equipment	
Battery liquidation	
Declaration of conformity	45

Thank you for purchasing of the ALIGATOR mobile phone. Please read carefully this instruction for use before you start.

Important instructions

- Do not switch on and do not use the mobile phone in the prohibited areas
- Do not use the mobile phone while driving the car
- Turn off the mobile phone near the sensitive medical devices unless you are sure that the radio transmission of the mobile phone does not influence its functions.
- Mobile phone can affect the function of the electronic cardiac pacemaker or other implanted apparatus.
- Switch off the cell phone always in the aicraft
- Use always original batteries supplied by the producer (danger

- of damage or explosion of the mobile phone)
- Do not put the battery at the fire and do not expose it to the temperature over +60°C (danger of explosion or fire)
- SAR mobile phone meets the prescription for maximal emission of the electromagnetic radiation
- While making a call please keep the mobile phone at least 2-3 cm away from the body to minimalise the quantity of the electromagnetic radiation absorbed by your body.
- Handle your cell phone and accessories with care, protect it from mechanical damage and impurity
- Protect the mobile phone and accessories from the extremely high temperatures
- Never put the mobile phone into parts!
- Do not place the mobile phone or its holder in the car at the place over the airbags

- Keep it out of reach of the children and do not allow them to play with. It contains small parts that can be suffocated or may hurt!
- Other information on our web site http://www.aligator.cz/en

Putting into operation

Insert SIM, memory card and battery

 Slip your nail at the slot under the battery cover on the back side of the mobile phone and pull down carefully the cover.



2. Insert one or two SIM cards (and also a memory card if you have one). The sheet metal covers of the card holders can be released by moving them in the direction of the arrow:



- 3.Next, insert the battery. If the contacts are covered with protective tape, be sure to remove it. The battery must fit smoothly into the slots in the phone.
- 4. Finally, put the battery cover back on.

ATTENTION! Turn off the phone and disconnect the charger when handling the battery, card or SIM card. Only use original batteries supplied by your phone manufacturer!

Battery charging

Make sure the battery is inserted in the phone. Connect the charger to the USB-C connector on the bottom of the phone. The phone can be charged in both power-on and power-off status. The battery charge status is indicated on the phone screen:

Discharged Fully charged

Mobile phone will warn you by an acoustic signal and by message on the screen when the battery is almost discharged. In this case charge the battery as soon as possible.

Sometimes, when the battery is completely discharged, the phone does not start charging when the charger is connected. In this case, leave the phone connected to the charger for a few hours until the battery starts charging.

Attention! Leaving the battery completely flat for a long time may damage the battery and it is not covered by the warranty.

Charging stand

You can also charge the phone at the charging stand (in case it is included in delivery or can be purchased separatelly).

- Connect the charger connector to the charging stand
- Place the phone in the cradle. If necessary, gently move the phone from left to right or front to back to

insert it so that the contacts on the bottom of the phone fit properly into the contacts in the stand.

Basic control

Switch On / Off



To **turn on/off**, long press the red button until the phone turns on/off.

(After turning on the device, you may be asked to enter the **PIN code**, after entering it, confirm with the left function **button (2)**, see the picture below)

Mobile phone controls



Description of controls

	Name	Function
1	Right function button	-starts contacts on standby mode -return from menu or exit current function -other functions depend on context (actual function is displayed above the key)
2	Left function button	-displays Messages in standyby mode -confirms selection in menu or activates selected function (OK) -other functions depend on context (current function is shown on display above the key)

3	Buttons Up/ Down / Central button OK	- displays phone menu in standby mode moving up/down in menus and phone list - center button to confirm the selection or activate the selected function (OK) - volume control during call and playback
4	Red button	- switch On/Off - stop or reject call - return from menu to the main screen or exit current function
5	Green button	-press the button to answer the call -displays call history in standby mode
6	Switch	- Swipe to turn on/off the flashlight
7	Button #	- inserts a # when writing tel. number
		12

- switches the way you enter characters in text input mode - A long press activates / deactivates the vibration mode (Meeting profile) -In music player mode, it is used to move to the next track -Used to move right

in some menus

Button

8

- inserts *,+, p, w when writing numbers - in text writing mode enables to insert special characters - in music player mode, it is used to go to the previous song -In some menus, it is used to move to

9	Earpho ne connect or	connector Jack 3,5mm for earphones / handsfree
1	Connec tor USB-C	- used for charging
1	Torchlig ht	- powerful LED flashlight is located on the top of phone
1	Earpho	- used to listen to a

lcons on the screen

icons on the selecti	
Tall	Signal strenght
4	Alarm clock activated
oxdot	Unread SMS message
(Missed calls
} {	Vibration / ringing off
•	

SOS mode activated

Navigation in menu

SOS

The phone menu is activated by pressing the button **OK (3)** or by navigation buttons up/down (3). You can then use the navigation buttons (3) to move between the items.

- Confirm selection function activation or enter the submenu is usually done by pressing left button (2) or center button OK (3).
- To cancel the selection or go back one menu level, press the right button (1).
- The meaning of both buttons (1) and (2) is usually indicated on the display directly above the buttons.
- By pressing the red button (4) you can usually jump out of the menu and go back to the main screen.

Keypad lock

The phone is equipped with a keypad lock that prevents accidental button presses, e.g. when carried in a pocket. The keypad locks automatically after a set period of inactivity.

To unlock or lock the keypad, first press the left button (2) and then the * button (8).

- To set the time for which the keypad is automatically locked, select in the menu:: Settings→ Display→ Auto key lock
- It is also possible to enable manual keypad locking by pressing the red button (4) on the phone's main screen.
- To enable this function, select in the phone menu: Settings→ Security
 → Display lock - Finish

Text insert

Use the # key (7) to switch the character input mode when writing texts. A variety of modes are available, depending on the number of languages installed at the phone.

Special characters can be entered by pressing the * button (8).

Use the navigation buttons (3) to select the character and confirm with **OK** (2). The character is inserted at the text.

Making calls

Dialing

Insert required phone number on the mobile keypad and press the **green** button **(5)**. Mobile will start to dial required number.

(If you have both SIMs active, after pressing the green button, you will be prompted to choose a SIM)

If you have dialled by mistake a wrong number, just press the right button "Delete" (1) and the last digit will be deleted.

If you need to delete the whole number, press the red button (4) and a whole number is deleted

- to answer the call press the green button (5)
- to reject the call press the red button (4).
- to adjust the volume during a call

 move the navigation button up / down (3).
- to listen handsfree, press during a call a center button OK (3).

ATTENTION!

The handset of the phone may be loud. Therefore, do not adjust the volume unnecessarily to the highest level to avoid hearing damage. In addition, when the handset volume is set higher, the other party may hear the echo of their voice under certain circumstances. In this case, turn down the volume until the phenomenon disappears.

Contact list

You can save phone numbers in your phone and assign names to phone numbers. Contacts can be stored either on the SIM card or at the phone memory.

Dialing from contact list

The easiest way to display the contact list is to press the right button (1). You can now enter the first letter of the name you are looking for. After that, the list of matching contacts starts in alphabetical order.

Use the Up and Down keys (3) to select the contact you want to call and press the **green call button (5)**.

When viewing the contact list, a different icon appears for each contact if it is stored on the SIM 1 or 2 card or at the phone.

Working with contacts

Select **Contacts** from the phone's main menu. Press the left Options button **(2)**. Now you have several options:

- View shows the contact details and enables to edit it
- 2. Add creates a new contact
- Write message sends SMS/MMS on contact
- 4. Call dials selected contact
- 5. Delete deletes selected contact

- 6. **Delete more** enables to delete more contacts at once
- Copy/move enables to copy and move contacts between SIM cards and the phone
- Import/export enables to store contacts on MicroSD card in VCF format or to read them from the card
- Others other functions, speed dial
- View contacts enables which contacts will be dispayed in a list (all/telephone/SIM 1/SIM 2)

Speed dial

Select in menu: Contacts and press Options(2)→ Others→ Speed dial.

Allows you to set so called Speed dial (speed dialing of the stored numbers by a long press of one of the key button).

Speed dial numbers can be assigned to buttons with the digits 2 to 9.

SOS call and SMS

Launch of emergency call and SMS

Press and hold the SOS button on the back side of your phone. An audible alarm sounds, then the phone will automatically dial the preset numbers from the list automatically until they can reach some of them

During the countdown, the SOS call can be canceled by pressing the red button (4).

The phone also sends an emergency SMS message to the preset numbers with the preset text (to select text in the menu)

Setting → SOS Set. → SOS SMS

The phone repeats calls to all numbers for a maximum of 3x, other phone functions cannot be used during this time

Attention!!!

If it is not possible to call any of the set numbers even once, the phone will remain in SOS mode. In this SOS mode, the phone will automatically answer incoming calls and automatically activate the hands-free function - hands-free listening. The mode is indicated by the SOS icon on the display.

You can deactivate the SOS mode by turning the phone off and on or by holding down the SOS button on the back of the phone.

Tip: If you want to cancel the launched SOS call and alarm after pressing the SOS button, you need to press and hold the SOS button on the back of the phone until the SOS mode ends

SOS function is only available if it is enabled in the settings of the phone and if the numbers are set up at the phone that the mobile should automatically call and send SMS message to. For set up select in menu: Settings -> SOS Set.

SOS Locator – positioning

Your phone is equipped with a special function that allows you, after pressing the SOS button, to determine the location of the phone and send it via SMS to recipients in the form of a link to view the map - if the recipient is using a regular phone with a web browser, just "click" on this link and a map showing the position of the phone displays.

The position is determined on the basis of the operator's network, the accuracy depends on the density of the network in a given location, e.g. in cities the position can be determined with an accuracy of tens to a few hundred metres, but outside the built-up area the accuracy of the location usually decreases.

This service is provided entirely without guarantee, at the user's own risk, and the accuracy of the results and the availability of the service is in no way guaranteed by the telephone supplier, the operator or the map provider, and the

service may be discontinued at any time without notice.

Activating of SOS locator

Select in menu:

Setting→ SOS Set.→ SOS regime→ SOS locator

Remote location request

Position of your mobile phone can be remotely detected by using of a special control SMS.

It is sufficient to send just a command via SMS with a text **SOSLOCATOR** to **your Aligator phone**. Your ALIGATOR phone then responds by sending of the current position via SMS.

Important: Your phone sends its location and responds only to SMS messages on numbers that are stored for emergency calls.

Switch on/off emergency call / SMS

It is possible to turn off sending messages or calls after activating the SOS button.

Choose from the menu:

Setting→ SOS Set.→ SOS SMS→ Send SMS

resp.

Setting→ SOS setting→ SOS call

Setting SOS functions

For detailed settings of SOS functions, select in the menu

Setting→ SOS setting:

- SOS regime selection of SOS regimes
 - Off SOS button is OFF
 - Normal SOS button is active, sends a pre-set SMS and calls for pre-set numbers
 - SOS locator SOS button is active and the SOS locator function is enabled, the phone will send the location after pressing it, it is possible to request the location remotely
- SOS SMS enabling/disabling the sending of an emergency SMS and setting its text
- Siren determines whether the siren sounds when the SOS button is pressed

- SOS call determines whether the phone will call preset SOS numbers after pressing the SOS button
- SOS numbers sets up to five numbers to which the phone will send an emergency SMS after activating the SOS button and try to call them.
- Low battery allows you to turn on/off the sending of low battery SMS notifications to pre-set SOS numbers.

Call register

On the basic screen, press the green button to see a list of recent calls. The phone keeps a list of the most recent outgoing, received, and missed calls.

Working with call register

Select in the main menu: Calls

Messages SMS/MMS

Your phone can receive and send SMS and MMS messages. The new message you receive will be notified by a symbol on the phone screen.

A notification will appear on the screen if you have a new, unread message. To view the message directly, just press the left button (2) and the message will be displayed. To leave viewing the message for later, press the right button (1). You can read it later:

Messages→ Received (an unread message is marked with a closed envelope icon, the read message is marked with an open envelope symbol)

Reading of messages

When viewing messages, you can press the left "Options" button (2) to display a menu containing the following functions:

- Read displays selected message
- Answer
 opens a window to create a response. You no longer need to fill in the addressee's number the sender's number of the incoming message is automatically taken over.
- 3. **Delete** deletes the viewed message from memory

- Delete all deletes all received messages
- Call dials the number of the message sender
- 6. **Move** moves the message to SIM1/SIM2/phone.
- Mark marks messages for bulk operations.
- 8. Organize sort messages
- Export SMS allows you to save SMS to storage
- Add sender adds the sender's number to contacts
- Delete same number deletes all messages from the sender
- Add to blacklist adds the sender to the so-called blacklist of blocked numbers.

Create and send SMS

- Select in menu: Messages→ Write new→ New SMS
- Enter the message text. Use # (7)
 to switch between
 lowercase/uppercase
 letters/numbers, and use * (8) to
 enter special symbols.
- Press the left "Options" buttons (2) and select **Send**. You can enter a

- phone number or select it from the list with the left button **Names** (2).
- Continue by pressing the left button Options(2)→ Send.
- If you have both SIMs active, you will be prompted to choose a SIM

Working with messages

Select **Messages** in the phone's main menu. Now you have several options:

- New message create and send a new SMS
- 2. Received received messages
- To be sent messages that could not be sent
- Drafts messages saved for later work
- 5. Sent sent messages
- Templates popular message patterns
- Send a message PUSH type messages (according to operator support)
- 8. **Voicemail server** setting the voicemail number
- Settings allows you to set the SMS center number, delivery notes, storage, etc.
- 10. Delete All deletes all messages

Message capacity – displays message memory status

FM Radio

Select in menu: FM Radio

You can improve the reception of the radio by connecting headphones (not included in the standard delivery) or a charging cable - it serves as an antenna. But the radio works even without them.

- Adjust the **volume** by pressing the navigation buttons (3)
- You can change the frequency using the * and # buttons.
- Press the center button OK (3) to turn off/on the sound.

Torchlight

You turn the flashlight on/off by moving the switch (6).

Alarm clock

The phone is equipped with several independent alarms, each of them can be set separately. The alarm can be set to repeat, it is possible to define specific days when it should ring etc.

- Select in menu:
 Organizer → Alarm clock
- A list of alarms will appear the alarm can be selected using the navigation buttons. up/down (3).
- By pressing the center button OK
 (2), you can easily turn on / off the selected alarm clock.
- 4. To set the selected alarm, press the left **Edit button (2)**.

You can **switch** between individual options in the alarm clock settings using the up/down navigation buttons (3), values can be changed by pressing the left button (2). You can end the settings by pressing the right "Back" button (1).

See the table for the meaning of individual alarm clock settings:

Function	Setting
Status	Off – alarm clock off On –alarm clock on
Messages	The text that will be displayed on the alarm clock
Time	Set time on the keypad
Ringing	Allows you to set the alarm clock tone
Repeating	Once – alarm rings 1x Every day – rings every day at the set time Select days – which days of the week the alarm will ring

Ringtone settings – sound profiles

The phone allows you to set different types of ringtones including vibrating, different ringtones, sounds and also the volume of these sounds. These settings are contained in so-called

sound profiles. By switching the profile once, you can change all these settings at once.

To set or switch the sound profile, choose **Settings** → **Sound profile** in the main menu. profiles, select the desired profile, press the left **Options button (2)** and select **Activate** to switch to the selected profile or Settings to change the sound settings.

Several preset profiles are available:

- o Normal basic profile for normal use
- Silent all sounds are muted, vibration is off
- Meeting vibrate on, sounds are muted
- Interior sounds are preset to a lower volume
- Outside the sounds are preset to a higher volume

You can customize the sounds in your profiles. Then you can easily switch back and forth between ringtone type and volume by simply switching profiles.

Change of ringtone

- Select in main menu Setting→
 Sound profiles
- select required profile (f.e. Normal) and select **Settings**
- next select Ringtone and choose tone that you need to change
- 4.in the same way you can set other parametres of profiles (volume, vibration etc.)

Calendar

Allows you to display and view your calendar by month or week and to remind you of an event with reminders for each day.

Select from the menu: Organizer →
Calendar

The calendar can be navigated using the up/down navigation keys (3), the number keys 4 and 6 to move sideways, and the months can be switched using the * (8) and # (7) keys. For more options, press the left Options button (2), a menu will appear:

 Add task - allows you to add a new event

- View Tasks displays saved events for the selected day
- All tasks displays all saved events
- Delete today allows you to delete events on the specified day
- Delete all allows you to delete all events
- Go to date goes to the specified date

Calculator

Select in menu:

Organizer→ Calculator

Control

Numbers are entered using the keyboard, the decimal point is entered by pressing the *(8) key.
Use the navigation buttons (3) to select

Example:

Calculate 100 + 200 :

the desired operation +,-,/,x.

- Select in menu:
 - Organizer→ Calculator
- Enter 100 on the keypad
 Press button (3) to choose "+"
- 4. Enter 200 on the keypad

- 5. Press left button OK (2)
- 6. The result is displayed

Press the red button (4) to exit

Bluetooth

Bluetooth is a modern system that allows you to wirelessly connect various devices, such as a wireless handsfree and a telephone, a telephone and a computer, or two phones.

You can stream the call, send files, or receive files from another device.

Select in menu: Organizer→Bluetooth

These options are available:

- Bluetooth turning on/off the Bluetooth transmitter/receiver
- Visibility enable/disable the phone's visibility to other Bluetooth devices
- Paired devices list of devices wirelessly connected or paired with the phone

- File transfer settings for transferring files between the phone and other devices.
- Device name the name by which your phone is identified by other devices
- Storage location selection of storage for received files

Camera

To switch on : select in menu Camera

After activating the camera, pictures can be taken by pressing the center button **OK** (3). A preview of the image will then appear on the screen - if you want to save it, press the left **Save** button (2).To continue shooting, press the right button **Back** (1).

Press the red button (4) to exit the camera

Camera setup

To set the camera, press the left button **Options (2)** and select:

 Video / photo mode - switches between camera and video camera mode.

- Effect used to set filters and effects for photos.
- Settings setting other properties, storage, etc. We recommend that you always choose a memory card as storage, as very few pictures can fit in the phone's memory.

ATTENTION! Shooting may take a few moments, so hold still after pressing the shutter button. Otherwise, the image may become blurry.

File manager

Select in menu: Multimedia → File manager

Opens the file manager (explorer). Allows you to browse folders and open or view files stored on your memory card or phone.

You can switch between the memory card and phone storage using the * (8) / # (7) buttons.

Mobile phone setup

To set the basic properties, select **Settings** in the phone's main menu.

Calls

To set the phone call parameters, select in the menu: Settings → Calls

- Dual SIM setting which SIM card and how it will be used
- Call forwarding forwarding settings. Requires operator's support.
- Call waiting activates / deactivates the call waiting function
- Hide ID turns on/off the display of your number to the called party
- 5. Others other settings for calls
- Režim letadlo vypne vysílače a přijímače v telefonu.

Telephone

Select in menu: **Settings**→ **Telephone** Allows you to set basic parametres:

- Time and Date set the time, date and time zone
- Language Setting the menu language and writing language
- Auto on / off setting the phone to turn on and off automatically at a certain time.

- Energy saving mode battery saving settings by limiting some functions
- Reset settings will reset the settings, you will need to enter the phone password - the default is 1234.

Display

- Wallpaper choose the background of the main screen
- Screen Saver Set the screen saver animation
- Brightness the intensity of the screen backlight
- Keyboard backlight time sets the keyboard lighting time
- Auto key lock sets how long it takes for the keypad to automatically lock if no key is pressed.

Security

Select in menu :

Settings→ Security

Allows you to set SIM card PIN, phone password and keypad lock:

 PIN / Edit PIN2 – turn on/off and change PIN / PIN2

- Phone locked allows you to lock your phone with a password. The factory password is 1234.
- Edit phone password changing the phone password
- Privacy allows you to lock selected functions with a phone password
- Lock the display with the Exit button - after switching on, it allows you to lock the keypad manually by pressing the red button (4).
- Allowed outgoing number allows you to set a list of allowed numbers for calls, depends on SIM card support
- Blacklist editing the list of blocked caller numbers. Allows you to block calls and messages from numbers included in this list.

Network setup + connection Select in menu: Settina→ Connection

- Network account setting APN points
- Data service enable data connections

- Data roaming data services by roaming
- Preferred card the preferred SIM card for data services
- Network selection automatic or manual operator network selection
- Network type choosing which types of network the phone can use (2G/3G/4G)

PC connection

The phone is equipped with a standard USB-C connector, which is used both for charging and for connecting to a personal computer.

File transfer between PC and phone

If you want to upload files to your phone or an inserted memory card, connect your phone to your computer with a USB-C cable (not included) and choose "Udisk". The phone memory and memory card (if inserted) will appear as removable disks.

ATTENTION! Requires Windows 7 and higher! Special drivers may be required when using other operating systems.

Other connection modes

If you want the phone to only be charged when connected to the computer, press the "Back" button after connecting the cable and showing the connection menu.

Specification

Param.	Description
Band	GSM:850/900/1800/19
	00 MHz, 3G:2100 MHz,
	4G:800/1800/2100/260
	0 MHz
Screen	coloured TFT LCD,
	320x240px
Memory	200 SMS messages
	2000 contacts
Memory	MicroSD / MicroSD
card	HC / T-Flash, max.128
support	GB

The ALIGATOR A910 mobile phone is intended for use in EU countries.

Safety and ecology

Used electrical equipment



Mobile phone is an electronic appliance. It means it must NOT be manipulated as a common

residential waste.

Never throw the used device away at the common municipal waste!!!

They may contain the substances dangerous to the environment. Hand over the battery to the respective collection point which provides the ecological liquidation or contact your dealer.

Battery liquidation

Used/old batteries and accumulators do not belong to the common residential waste !!!

They may contain the substances dangerous to the environment. Hand over the battery to the respective

collection point which provides the ecological liquidation. Please contact your dealer to get more information how to deal with the used products. Do not throw the battery at the fire nor expose it to the temperatures over +60°C. Danger of explosion or fire! Handling with the used batteries in contradiction with given instructions is illegal!

Declaration of conformity

ADART COMPUTERS s.r.o. hereby declares that the type of the radio device ALIGATOR A910 is in compliance with Directive 2014/53/EU.



www.aligator.cz/en

Copyright © ADART COMPUTERS s.r.o. Čimická 717/34, CZ-Prague (EU)